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LOCATION AND SETTING:

The District is located at the end of a gravel drive a
two-tenths of a mile in a nerthwest direction off from t

Frost Hill Road in East Eliot about a tenth of a mile west
of the York-Eliot town line. .

Three buildings are included in the complex. All three of

them could be encompassed by a circle with a fifty foot radius|

The surrounding area on top of Frost's Hill is largely open
field with some scattered tree growth. Ten acres of land
should provide ample protection.

BASIC STRUCTURES AND BUILDING MATERIALS :

The first building encountered when approaching the ground
via the gravel drive is the old Frost family home, built in C-.
1778. This building replaced an earlier garrison house built
in 1733 and which was destroyed in 1760. It is a 40' x 28'
two_and one-half story wooden frame home with a gable roof,
sheathed with cedar shingles. It is painted white. There are
two brick chimmeys which serve fireplaces in each of the eight
rooms. Thére is a central hall which is entered from both the
_front and rear (long sides) of the building. - This hall holds
the stairwell. The original floors were made of wide pine
boards; however, these have been replaced by hard wood on the
first floor. The second story floor is original. Some of the

" interior.walls are of wainscot panels up to about three and

one-half feet from the floor. The walls are then, throughout,
primarily plastered and very fine painted stencil work in ex-
cellent condition can be readily enjoyed. This building is a
joy to the beholder, well preserved and properly restored.

It can perform a useful modern day function as a home. There
is an electrical entrance, but water and plumbing are absent
at this time. The entrance of these facilities will not
adversely affect the architectural or historic significance of
this building. This building was provided with a tunnel which
led from beneath the stairway out to the second building con-
sidered in this district.

garfison used primarily as a powder house which was built in
1735 for protection. It served the original home of 1733.
The small garrison measures about 15' x 15'. It was removed
from its foundation over 30 years ago and reconstructed at

Ti;ﬁ;econd building directly behind the home is an original
5

Kittery Point. This Powder House has now been returned to its

original location and rests on its original foundation. The
tunnel that did connect with the home is not intact. The
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Basic Structures and Building Materials (Con't.)

Powder House is a wooden structure made of hand hewn timbers of
pine and oak, dovetailed at. the ends. There are special timbers

which lock the structure together. It has a loft beneath its

low gable roof. Partholes are provided from which defenders could

fire. The original blocks or plugs for these portholes are extant
and in place. -

The third building, the Frost Garrison, is again in back of the
home and beyond the Powder House. This is the most outstanding
building of this district - a large garrison house erected in
1738 or 1740. It is unique architecturally. Its twelve inch
‘corner outside dovetails of hand hewn pine logs into squared
timbers reveal its strength and enduring permanence.

Evidence of Indian attacks is seen around the small 3" x 3" port-
holes which are riddled with holes made by arrows and bullets.
Two_such portholes are to be found in each of the garrison's
walls. Five of the original porthole plugs are still in place.
Such niceties as ggg_oilﬂscuttles are to be found in the structure.

The first floor has doors large enough to accommodate the cattle
which were driven into the dirt floored downstairs area prior to
Indian raids.

Forty-foot floorboards two inches thick, apparently made by an
up-and-down saw,are used for the second story floor. A medieval
style stairway secured on the landing by a planked door leads to
the second floor. Found upstairs in all corners, as well as in
the overhangs, are trap doors which served as openings to shoot
through. The walls are made from huge pine trees and the sup-
porting knees from giant roots. Most of the timbers measure 12"
to 18" in width and are generally 8" in thickness. The foundation
' is of simple field stone construction with a thickness of about
one foot. The gabled roof is covered by cedar shingles. Although
the large garrison has been periodically repaired through the
years, its general appearance cannot differ greatly from the
original, A\
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

During the earliest years of English settlement in Eliot
(North Kittery until 1810), relations with the Indians were
usually good. Increasing mistreatment of the Indians by the
English settlers as well as encouragement by the French led to
a s%riesnnfwlndianwgars. These lasted from 1675 when King

hi ing§6War broke out, until the end of the French and Indian
War n 3 T

Southern Maine people were jnvolved in a great many blood
skirmishes with the local Inwdians during much of this period.
In order to protect themsel®es from attacks, it was necessary
for the local settlers to build many strong garrison houses.

Col. John Frgét joined the ranks of citizens who constructed
garrf%ons 1n the Eliot area. In about 1733 he built a house
on the town's most prominent land feature, Frost's Hill. The
house was the second to be erected on the Frost Hill land which
the Frosts had owned since 1660. Within a few year§, he erected
a small garrison about 30' behind the house. This- small build-
ing was later used as a powder house. The large garrison was
_erected for neighborhood use in 1738.

INSTRUCTIONS

SEE

In any case, garrisons had been erected earlier in the sur-
rounding areas. Many other families had garrison houses. One
of John Frost's relatives, a Major Charles Frost, was the owner
of a garrison until he was killed after being ambushed by
Ind%?ns on July 4, 1697. At “one time there were 28 garrisons
in iot.

Although the numerous arrowhead marks found around the large
garrison’s portholes indicate that Indians had attacked the
garrison on at least one occasion, there is no documentary
evidence available indicating dates or circumstances surround-
ing any attacks.

After the Indian menace subsided, both Frost garrisons were
used as storehouses for wood.

The large garrison was considered to be 'very well preserved"
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As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na-

tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law
89-665), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion
in the National Register and certify that it has been

evaluated according to the criteria and procedures set
forth by the National Park Service.
level of significance of this nomination is:

State X

The recommended

National L.ocal
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Name ~
Lawrence Stuart

Title Director

Date //;/ 7/
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I hereby certify that thié property is inciuded in the

National Register.

Keeper of The National Registet/'

Date
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SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

in 1880 apd "still structurally sound" in 1903. The small
ggrr sona powder_hoasgg still Zerved as a woodhouse as late as

1880, but fell into decay and was eventually removed to Kittery
Point. It has now been returned and restored on its original
foundation. o ' S - ‘

The Frost house is well known for its fine stenciled interior
walls.,” It remained in the Frost family until it was sold in
1930. It was slated for removal to nearby York Harbor at that
time, but due to the depression plans were changed and removal
was neyer effected. It is interesting to note that it is the
ancesq%;al home of the American poet, Robert Frost, who made
numerous visits to the Frost Hill area.

The present owner, Joseph Parsons, has done a goodly amount
of restorative work on both the large garrison and the Frost
house.

This is the on}i/known 18th-century set of bﬁildings in the
United States erected strictly as a fortress against Indian
attack by a single family. :
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